
 
 

 
 

LICENSING PANEL  
 

TUESDAY 16 AUGUST 2005 
2.00 PM * 

 
PANEL AGENDA (LICENSING AND GENERAL PURPOSES) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1&2    
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
*  THERE WILL BE A BRIEFING FOR MEMBERS AT 1.30 PM IN COMMITTEE ROOM 5 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
(To be appointed) 

 
Councillors: 

 
 
 

Mrs Bath 
Janet Cowan 
Knowles 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 
Legal Services Department  

 
Contact:  Daksha Ghelani, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1881   E-mail:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING PANEL  
 
TUESDAY 16 AUGUST 2005 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Appointment of Chair:    
 To appoint a Chair for the purposes of this meeting. 

 
2. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note that there are no Reserve Members currently appointed to this Panel. 

 
3. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present. 
 

4. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

5. Minutes:    
 The minutes of each Panel meeting are signed by the relevant Chair, to 

confirm their accuracy, shortly after the meeting has taken place.  Minutes of 
such previous meetings appropriately are not submitted to subsequent 
Panels, which will be considering relevant cases under different 
Chairmanships. 
 

6. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 18 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the 
Constitution). 
 

8. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure 

Rule 16 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

9. Licensing Procedures:  (Pages 1 - 2) Enc. 
 Procedure to be followed at an oral hearing. 

 
Enc. 10. Application for variation of hours during Transitional period, South 

Harrow Off Licence, 293 Northolt Road, South Harrow:  (Pages 3 - 42) 
 



 

 

Enc. 11. Application for variation of hours at New Moon, Kenton Park Parade, 
Kenton during Transitional period:  (Pages 43 - 90) 

 
Enc. 12. Application for variation of hours at Junction PH, Gayton Road, Harrow 

during Transitional period:  (Pages 91 - 136) 
 

Enc. 13. Application for variation of hours at Wealdstone Inn, High Road, Harrow 
Weald during Transitional period:  (Pages 137 - 180) 

 
14. Any Other Business:    
 Which the Chair has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II   

 



This page is intentionally left blank





2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Meeting:   Licensing Panel 
Date: 16 August 2005 
Subject: Application for variation of hours during 

Transitional period, South Harrow Off Licence, 
293 Northolt Road, South Harrow 

Responsible Officer: Chief Environmental Health Officer 
Contact Officer: P Sivashankar, Service Manager, ext 5605 
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Philip O’Dell 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
Members are asked to determine the application in accordance with the guidance 
in Section 2.5. 
 
Reason for report 
 
The application for a conversion and simultaneous variation for South Harrow Off 
Licence, 293 Northolt Road, South Harrow has received representations from 
Responsible Authorities. As per the Council’s Licensing Policy and delegation of 
Licensing functions, all applications with unresolved representations are to be 
dealt by the Licensing Panel. 
 
Benefits 
 
The hearing provides the applicant, persons making the representations and the 
Licensing Authority an opportunity to engage in constructive dialogue to 
determine the application in an open public forum. 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
None 
 
Risks 
 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 3 to 42

3



 

If any party is aggrieved with the decision or is believes that a fair hearing is not 
provided, they can apply to the magistrates Court for a re-hearing. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
N/A 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
2.1.1 Application has been made by Mr Sahilan Kanagaratnam and Mr 

Sujeevan Kanagaratnam of 227 Northolt Road, South Harrow, for a 
Premises Licence for South Harrow Off Licence, 293 Northolt Road, South 
Harrow. A copy of the application is attached to this Report. The premises 
is licensed to sell alcohol OFF the premises. 

 
2.1.2 The application seeks the following changes to the existing Justices 

Licence (converted) hours, and if granted will take effect from 24th 
November 2005:  

 
SALE BY RETAIL OF 
ALCOHOL-OFF (M) 

HOURS PREMISES ARE 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC (O) 

DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH 
MON 0900 0100 MON 0900 0100 
TUE 0900 0100 TUE 0900 0100 
WED 0900 0100 WED 0900 0100 
THU 0900 0100 THU 0900 0100 
FRI 0900 0100 FRI 0900 0100 
SAT 0900 0100 SAT 0900 0100 
SUN 0900 0100 SUN 0900 0100 

 
Existing hours as converted Licence shows: 
Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours. 
In this condition, permitted hours means: 
a. On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 0800 to 2300. 
b. On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 1000. to 2230. 
c.  On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 1500. and 1900. to 2230. 
d. On Good Friday, 0800. to 2230. 

  
2.1.3 The Premises: 
 

The premises are situated in a predominantly commercial part of Northolt 
Road in South Harrow. . There is residential accommodation provided 
above most of the premises on Northolt Road, which are likely to be 
occupied by tenants. 
 

2.2 Representations 
 

4



 

2.2.1 The application has received 1 representation from Metropolitan Police 
sighting the promotion of all 4 Licensing Objectives. Copy of this 
representation is attached to this Report. 

 
2.3 Consultation 
 
2.3.1 The application was advertised in accordance with the Regulations under 

the Licensing Act 2003.   
 

2.4 Financial Implications 
 
None. 
 

2.5 Legal Implications 
 

2.5.1 Having considered the representations of the applicant and the interested 
party, the Panel has to determine the application for the licence.  The 
legislation does not list the grounds on which the Panel can refuse and/or 
grant an application for a licence.  The legislation does allow for the 
imposition of conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers no guidance as 
to the type of condition that may be imposed.  It is clear that any additional 
conditions would have to be practical, enforceable and meet the rules of 
natural justice and the promotion of the Four Licensing Objectives. 

 
 
2.5.2 Options available to the Panel: 
 

a.  To grant the application as it stands.  Any licence granted would 
be subject to conditions relating to the Operating Schedule 
attached to the Application. 

 
b. To grant the Licence in light of any evidence presented at the 

hearing, from both the interested party and the applicant, subject 
to – 

 
The conditions mentioned in the operating schedule being 
modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
 
Any condition which, must under section 19, 20 or 21 (Mandatory 
Conditions) of the Licensing Act 2003 be included in the licence, 
and 
 
To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates, 
 

c. To reject the application. 
 
It should be noted with all options that; 
 

5



 

i).  Clear reasons would have to be given to the applicant and to the 
interested party if the application were granted, refused or, if 
additional conditions were imposed; and 

 
ii).  The applicant and/or the interested party would have the right of appeal to 

a Magistrates Court. 
 
2.5.3. In addition to determining the application in accordance with the 

legislation, Members must also have regard to the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
2.6 Equalities Impact 

 
N/a 
 
 
 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Application 
 
Representations (letter of objection to the application) 
 
Mandatory Conditions that would be attached to the licence if granted. 
 
Conditions drawn from the Operating Schedule provided by the Applicant-Annex 
2 

6



 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating 
Schedule 
 
General 
None offered 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
The premises is provided with CCTV and operated in line with the Harrow 
Police’s guidelines inside and outside during the premises open to public 
 
Public Safety 
None offered 
 
 
The prevention of public nuisance 
None offered 
 
The protection of children from harm 
None offered 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



Harrow Council, Licensing Section, P O Box 18, Station Road, Harrow. 
 

Making a Representation against an Application (New or 
variation) for a premises licence or club premises certificate 

under the Licensing Act 2003  
 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST  
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form  
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if 
necessary.  
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
 
I, Police Sergeant Carl Davis, make this representation under  
 
the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as 
applicable)  
 
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
 
Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference 
or description  
 
South Harrow Off Licence  , 293 Northolt Road  , South Harrow  
 
 
Post town Harrow  Post code HA2 8HX  

 
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
 
Part 2 - Applicant details  
I am          Please tick byes  
 1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)    □ 

  
 a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises     □ 
  
 b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
  
 c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
d) a body representing persons involved in business     □ 

in the vicinity of the premises 

33



 
 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)     X  
 
3) a member of the club to which this application relates     □ 

(please complete (A) below)  
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)  
Mr  □ Mrs □  Miss □  Ms □  Other title  □ 

(for example, Rev)  
Surname   First names 
 

Please tick byes  
I am 18 years old or over        □ 
 
Current address  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Post Town   Post Code 
 
Daytime contact telephone number   
Email address  
(optional)  
 
(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT  
 
Name and address  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any)  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 

34



2  
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT  
Name and address  
 
Metropolitan Police 
South Harrow Police Station  
74 Northolt Road  
South Harrow  
HA2 ODN  
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any) 0208 733 3415  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 
This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)  

Please tick one or more boxes  
 1) the prevention of crime and disorder     X 
 2) public safety        x 
 3) the prevention of public nuisance      x  
 4) the protection of children form harm     x 
 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note1)  
 
The grounds for this application to review whether within the proposed operating schedule 
submitted by the applicant they have outlined suitable steps to prevent crime and disorder ,  
maintain public safety , prevent public nuisance and protect children from harm . 
 
This premises is in a high street , however a high street with terminal hours at all premises mostly 
no later than 2300 hrs and rarely 2400 hrs. There are residential premises ( flats) above the 
shops on both sides of the road. There is no designated parking outside the premises. Should the 
premises be open beyond 2300hrs then greater disturbance to residents is likely , 
notwithstanding the likelihood of it drawing custom from those vacating the many local on- 
licensed premises who will themselves have consumed a large amount of intoxicating liquor. 
 
The applicant states he already has in place some measures to prevent or reduce crime – i.e. 
CCTV  - however he has not suggested or stated that he will in fact provide any new or additional 
steps to those already required by law or current good practice. 
 
In 2002 and 2003 the Licensee has reported incidents of attempted deception and to assist in the 
dection and prevention of crime up to date security measures are essential , particularly in 
premises who wish to extend their hours. 
 
In Section P the applicants outline the additional steps they intend taking to promote the four 
licensing objectives by detailing the measure he already has in place or already exist.  
 
With the above evidence in mind and I object to the variation application as it stands. 
 
I do not believe that the applicant is taking any additional steps to promote the licensing 
objectives but merely wishes to increase his trading hours.  
 
 I also request that the licensing panel impose necessary conditions should the variation 

35



be granted in any form.  
 
I request that it form part of the conditions of the conversion of the License (if granted) that the 
Designated Premises Supervisor be employed at the premises. This is to ensure that all sales 
can be supervised first hand. 
 
I request that a condition be made that should the D.P.S. not be present on the premises that at 
least one other member of staff on the premises be a License holder (having passed the 
necessary qualification). This is to prevent offences during licensed hours.  
 
I request a condition that the premises operate a ‘challenge under 21’ policy in that no sales of 
intoxicating liquor be made to persons over 18 or under 21 unless that age has been challenged 
by staff and their correct age ascertained.  This is to protect children.   
 
I request a condition that the applicant agree to any recommendations made by our crime 
reduction officers who will conduct a survey of the premises. This is to prevent crime and 
maintain public safety.  
 
I have listed below those measures which have been sent to all Licensees operating premises in 
this borough and request it be made a condition that these basic measures be adopted:  
 
Crime Reductions Measures  
********************************* 
 
Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) is required because it improves the perception of safety and 
allows monitoring of the whole premises.  It must achieve the following: 
 
Visually confirm the nature of the crime committed. 
Identify the suspected criminal(s) visually for purposes of evidence and connect them with the 
crime. 
Provide evidence-supporting detail relating to the circumstances. 
Provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any image. 
Provide good quality colour images. 
Capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all people exiting the premises from both 
entry and exit routes.  This should ensure that images of criminals are captured whilst leaving the 
premises and discarding any facemasks, etc. 
Have the capability to record a full-length view of a person 1.92m tall, to occupy at least 60% of 
the image height, in at least one of the captured images. 
Be positioned externally above the rear door to cover any courtyard/garden area. 
Operate under existing light levels within the premises. 
Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet. 
Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality. 
Record images as near to real time as possible and where practical, personal attack buttons 
should be connected via the CCTV system, to change any time-lapse recording to real time. 
Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention. 
Must comply with the Data Protection Act (DPA) and any applicable British Security Industry 
Association (BSIA) codes of practice. 
Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation (DPA). 
Be operated by the correct procedures, to ensure an evidence trail is recorded and can be 
retrieved for evidential purposes. 
If the system is analogue, a library of 31 video tapes will be required for storage and rotation. 
 
A monitored central station alarm is required and must be installed by either a NACOSS or SSAIB 
affiliated installer and must achieve the following: 
 
The monitored security system must be equipped with a signal terminating at a recognised Alarm 
Receiving Centre (ARC) and must comply with the current version of the EN 50131-1 standard 

36



and be eligible for a police response as defined by the ACPO Policy on Police Response to 
Security Systems, Level 1 status. 
 
This should incorporate fixed personal panic attack buttons for the use of staff behind the counter 
remoter panic buttons for staff when they are away from the counter area. 
 
 
A safe controlled by a time delay method is required and must achieve the following: 
 
Restrict access for at least three minutes, to deter criminals from accessing the surplus or reserve 
value during any robbery. 
Have a drop facility with anti-fish mechanism. 
Include the safe being either bolted to a solid wall and/or solid floor or buried in a solid wall and/or 
solid floor. 
 
Tills must be regularly skimmed off, to reduce the impact should a robbery occur. 
 
Signage must be displayed in the customer area, highlighting that access to cash and valuable 
items is controlled by time delay.  Alternatively, where staff do not have access to the safe, a sign 
must state this fact.  It is recommended that a time delay, visual countdown display is used, so 
that a robber/burglar can see that a time delay is in operation. 
 
 
Robbery awareness training is required for staff and must achieve the following: 
(This is only applicable to Off Licenses and Betting Shops) 
 
The Crime Prevention Officers will provide a leaflet about crime reduction for retailers, which 
incorporates robbery awareness.  This must be shown to all members of staff on an annual basis 
and a record kept that this has been done, as part of your training procedure. 
 
Training is not the responsibility of the Metropolitan Police Service. 
 
 
Indelible note staining and smoke system is required and must achieve the following: 
(This is only applicable to Off Licenses and Betting Shops) 
 
Comply with specification PAS 40 2002 Class ll, issued by the British Standards Institute. 
Stolen notes will be dyed, rendering them worthless to the extent that there is no gain to the 
criminal. 
A covert note-spoiling device must be placed in each counter till. 
The device must look as authentic as possible to ensure that it is taken by or handed to the 
criminal instinctively. 
The system must be automatically activated to ensure the safety of staff. 
The dye pack must be programmed to activate once the criminal has left the premises.  A time 
delay of at least 6 seconds is recommended. 
It is recommended that the dye used is traceable to either a specific incident, the retailer or a 
manufacturer. 
All notes that are used in construction of a dye pack must be recorded separately and the details 
kept, in order to assist with any subsequent investigation. 
The system used must produce sufficient smoke to attract attention to the criminal. 
 
 
Other security requirements: 
 
A till guard is required to prevent easy access to cash in the till. 
 
If a letterbox is fitted, it must be fireproof. 

37



 
If the rear door is a designated fire escape route, it should be manufactured from steel and 
designed without visible external ironmongery.  The push bar must operate shoot bolts to the top 
and bottom of the frame and be supported by a 5-lever mortice lock to be used outside opening 
hours. 
 
A 180-degree door viewer fitted to this door will enable you to see who is at the back door without 
having to open it first. 
 
Where external storage areas are required for outside furniture, beer kegs, waste storage, 
wheelie bins, etc. they should be detached from the main building, so that they cannot be used as 
climbing aids. 
 
                  *********************************************** 
 
 
Since further recommendations may be necessary it is expected the applicant will invite an officer 
from the Crime Reduction unit to the premises to do an on-site survey. 
 
 
Should all recommendations be completed then I have no objection should the premises wish to 
trade until Midnight on a Friday or Saturday night and close at 2300 hrs Sunday to Thursday.  
 
I have no objection to the premises opening and supplying alcohol from 0900 hrs each day.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 
Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 2)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 
Please tick  

yes  
 
Have you made a representation relating to this premises before    □   NO  
 
If yes please state the date of that representation, Day Month Year  

        
 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they 
were and when you made them  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



 
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE 
STANDARD SCALE [AMOUNT], UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO 
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION  
 
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3)  
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (please read guidance note 4)  
If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.  
 
Signature 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………  
Date 8th July 2005 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Capacity ……Police Licensing Officer 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………  
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 5)  
 
 
 
 
 
Post town  
 

Post code  

Telephone number (if any)  
 
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an email address your e mail address (optional)  
 

 
Notes for Guidance  

 1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one of the licensing objectives.  
 2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in the 

grounds for representation if available.  
 3. The application form must be signed.  
 4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have 

actual authority to do so.  
 5. This is the address, which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.  

 
Relevant Representations means; 
 

a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence or club premises certificate on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives, 

b) that the representation were made by an interested party or responsible authority within the period 
prescribed, 28 days from the application was advertised. 

c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not also a responsible authority) that 
they are not, in the opinion of the relevant Licensing Authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

 
Further restrictions apply relating to Police Representations on DPS’s and representations on provisional 
statements.  Please check with the Licensing Section. 

 
 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Meeting:   Licensing Panel 
Date: 4 August 2005 
Subject: Application for variation of hours at New Moon, 

Kenton Park Parade, Kenton during 
Transitional period 

Responsible Officer: Chief Environmental Health Officer 
Contact Officer: P Sivashankar, Service Manager, ext 5605 
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Philip O’Dell 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
Members are asked to determine the application in accordance with the guidance 
in Section 2.5. 
 
Reason for report 
 
The application for a conversion and simultaneous variation is made by Messer’s 
Berwin Leighton Paisner on behalf of the applicant JD Weatherspoon Plc, for the 
New Moon, Kenton Park Parade, Kenton. This application has received 
representations. As per the Council’s Licensing Policy and Delegation of 
Licensing Functions, all applications with unresolved representations are to be 
determined by the Licensing Panel. 
 
Benefits 
 
The hearing provides the applicant, persons making the representations and the 
Licensing Authority an opportunity to engage in constructive dialogue to 
determine the application in an open public forum.  
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
None 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 43 to 90

43



 

 
Risks 
 
If any party is aggrieved with the decision or is believes that a fair hearing is not 
provided, they can apply to the magistrates Court for a re-hearing. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
As above 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
2.1.1 The application for a conversion and simultaneous variation is made by 

Messer’s Berwin Leighton Paisner on behalf of the applicant JD 
Weatherspoon Plc, for a Premises Licence for New Moon, Kenton Park 
Parade, Kenton. A copy of the application and the existing licences are 
attached to this report. (This Authority has not adopted the Private Places 
of Entertainments (Licensing) Act 1967) 

 
2.1.2 The application seeks the following changes to the existing Justices 

Licence hours, which, if granted, will take effect from 24th November 2005:  
 

Sale of alcohol, provision of late night refreshment and the hours that the 
premises are open to the public to extend from 11pm to the hours listed in 
the table below:-  

 
SALE BY RETAIL OF 
ALCOHOL ON & OFF 

PROVISION OF LATE 
NIGHT REFRESHMENT – 
INDOORS & OUTDOORS 

HOURS PREMISES ARE 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH 
MON 0900 0030 MON 2300 0030 MON 0700 0130 
TUE 0900 0030 TUE 2300 0030 TUE 0700 0130 
WED 0900 0030 WED 2300 0030 WED 0700 0130 
THU 0900 0030 THU 2300 0030 THU 0700 0130 
FRI 0900 0100 FRI 2300 0100 FRI 0700 0200 
SAT 0900 0100 SAT 2300 0100 SAT 0700 0200 
SUN 0900 0030 SUN 2300 0030 SUN 0700 0130 

 
The premises are open to the public for an additional hour on the morning 
of the day the clocks go forward.  And 
 
Notwithstanding these usual opening times, the premises, in accordance 
with the converted right, may choose to open to the public at any time for 
non-licensable activities/purposes. 
 

44



 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES TO EXTEND: 
 
On the following notable days/dates listed below an additional 1 hour are 
to be permitted for the licensable activity (not including drinking up time)- 
 
Burns Night, 25th January 
Australia Day, 26th January 
St David’s Day, 1st March 
St Patrick’s Day, 17th March 
St George’s Day, 23rd April 
St Andrew’s Day, 30th November 
 
An additional 30 minutes to the standard finish hour on the following days; 
Thursday immediate preceding Good Friday 
Sunday immediately preceding a Bank Holiday Monday 
 
And 
On Christmas Eve until 0200 
On Boxing Day until 0200 
 
And Finally, 
From 0600 until the beginning of the standard hours or until 0300 the 
following morning as follows: 
On no more than 12 occasions per calendar year, these extensions for the 
supply of alcohol can only take place if at least 7 days notice is provided to 
the Police and the Licensing Authority and only if the Police give their 
consent. 
 
 
 

45



 

 
Note: The Secretary of State through the statutory guidance has made this 
statement; 
 
It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and 
club premises certificates to anticipate special occasions, which occur 
regularly each year –such as bank holidays –, and to incorporate 
appropriate opening hours for these occasions in their operating 
schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices – in respect of which a 
personal licence holder may give fifty each year – should be sufficient to 
cover events like Golden Wedding Anniversaries or 21st Birthday parties 
which take place at premises which do not have a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. However, with the passage of time exceptional events 
of local, national or international significance will arise which could not or 
have not been anticipated. Such events can give rise to the need to vary 
the conditions of large numbers of premises licences and club premises 
certificates. In such circumstances, it will be open to the Secretary of State 
to make a licensing hours order to provide for premises with a premises 
licence or club premises certificate to open for specified, generally 
extended, hours on these special occasions. Examples might include a 
one-off local festival, a Royal Jubilee, a World Cup or an Olympic Games.  
 
Such events should be genuinely exceptional and the Secretary of State 
will not consider making such an order lightly. Licensing authorities (or any 
other persons) approaching the Secretary of State about the making of 
such an order are advised that they should give at least six months notice 
before the celebration in question. Before making such an order, the 
Secretary of State is required to consult such persons as she considers 
appropriate, and this would generally enable a wide-range of bodies to 
make representations to her for consideration. In addition, such an order 
will require the approval of both Houses of Parliament. Six months would 
be the minimum period in which such a process could be satisfactorily 
completed.  

 
 

 

46



 

 
 

 
The current permitted hours are 1100 to 2300 Monday to Saturday and 
Midday to 2230 on Sundays with 20 minutes drinking up time under the 
Licensing Act 1964. 
 

 
2.1.3 The Premises: 
 

The premises are situated in the main commercial part where a number of 
restaurants and shops are located. The premises are of solid construction.  
A location map is attached to this report. 

 
 
2.1.4 Policy Implications 

 
According to the Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003, recommends that variation of this 
nature should be based on 5 main policy aims.  These are that; 
 

1. the main purpose of the licensing regime is to promote the licensing 
objectives;  

2. applicants for premises licences or for major variations of such licences 
are expected to conduct a thorough risk assessment with regard to the 
licensing objectives when preparing their applications. This risk 
assessment will inform any necessary steps to be set out in an operating 
schedule to promote the four licensing objectives;  

3. operating schedules, which form part of an application, should be 
considered by professional experts in the areas concerned, such as the 
police and environmental health officers, when applications for premises 
licences and club premises certificates are copied to them by applicants;  

4. local residents and businesses are free to raise relevant representations, 
which relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives, about the 
proposals contained in an application; and  

5. the role of a licensing authority is primarily to regulate the carrying on of 
the licensable activity when there are differing specific interests in those 
activities to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted in the wider 
interests of the community.  
 
When considering applications, it is expected that licensing authorities will 
seek to uphold these policy aims. 
 
The Council’s Licensing Policy in section 2.2 stipulates that a thorough risk 
assessment with regards to the Licensing Objectives must be carried out 
to reflect the individual nature of the venue. 
 

 
 

47



 

2.2 Representations 
 
2.2.1 The application has received representations from 2 Responsible 

Authorities (Environmental Protection and Met. Police) sighting the 4 
Licensing Objectives and the inadequate risk assessments to cover the 
additional opening hours applied for. Copies of these representations are 
attached to this Report. 
 

2.3 Consultation 
 

The application was advertised in accordance with the Regulations under 
the Licensing Act 2003.  This Authority has received 2 representations in 
total. 
 

2.4 Financial Implications 
 

N/A 
 

2.5 Legal Implications 
 

2.5.1 Having considered the representations from all parties, the Panel has to 
determine the application for the variation of the converted premises 
licence.  The legislation does not list the grounds on which the Panel can 
refuse and/or grant an application for a licence.  The legislation does allow 
for the imposition of conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers no 
guidance as to the type of condition that may be imposed.  It is clear that 
any additional conditions would have to be practical, enforceable and meet 
the rules of natural justice and the promotion of the four Licensing 
Objectives. 
 

2.5.2 Options available to the Panel: 
 
a. To grant the application as it stands.  Any licence granted would be 

subject to conditions relating to the Operating Schedule attached to the 
Application. 

 
b.  To grant the Licence in light of any evidence presented at the hearing, 

from both the interested party and the applicant, subject to: 
 

i) The conditions mentioned in the operating schedule being modified to 
such extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and/or to limit the period of validity of the grant, and 
 
ii) Any condition which, must under section 19, 20 or 21 (Mandatory 
Conditions) of the Licensing Act 2003 be included in the licence, and 
 
iii) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates, 
 

c. To reject the application. 

48



 

 
2.5.3 It should be noted with all options that; 
 
 i). Clear reasons would have to be given to the applicant and to the 

persons/Responsible Authorities who made representations if the 
application were granted, refused or, if additional conditions were 
imposed; and 

 
ii).  The applicant and/or the interested party/Responsible Authorities 

would have the right of appeal to a Magistrates Court. 
 
2.5.3. In addition to determining the application in accordance with the 

legislation, Members must also have regard to the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
2.6 Equalities Impact 
 

N/a 
 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Application 
Representations  
Mandatory Conditions that would be attached to the licence if granted. 
Conditions drawn from the Operating Schedule provided by the Applicant-Annex 
2 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating 
Schedule 
 
General 
There will be at least a pool of 5 Managers responsible for the Management of 
staff. 
 
All staff will be trained to a widely recognised level and quality in controlling the 
behaviour of customers on licensed premises. 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
None offered. 
 
Public Safety 
None offered 
 
The prevention of public nuisance 
Appropriate signage is placed to request patrons to leave quietly 
 
Information about local transport will be provided to patrons. 
The protection of children from harm 
None offered 

49



 

 
 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

 
19     Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

  
      (1) Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence 

must include the following conditions. 
  

      (2) The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the 
premises licence-  
  

  (a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect 
of the premises licence, or 

  (b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

      (3) The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises 
licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
  

20     Mandatory condition: exhibition of films 
  

      (1) Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence 
must include a condition requiring the admission of children to the exhibition 
of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section. 
  

      (2) Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless 
subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation made by that body. 
  

      (3) Where-  
  

  (a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 
  (b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence 

that this subsection applies to the film in question, 
  admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any 

recommendation made by that licensing authority. 
  

      (4) In this section-  
  

  "children" means persons aged under 18; and 
  "film classification body" means the person or persons designated as 

the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) 
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 

21     Mandatory condition: door supervision 
  

50



 

      (1) Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one 
or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the 
licence must include a condition that each such individual must be licensed by 
the Security Industry Authority. 
  

      (2) But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed-  
  

  (a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 
Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises 
licences authorising plays or films), or 

  (b) in respect of premises in relation to-  
  (i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that 

Schedule (premises being used exclusively by club with club 
premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising 
plays or films or under a gaming licence), or 

  (ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule 
(occasions prescribed by regulations under that Act). 

      (3) For the purposes of this section-  
  

  (a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of 
that Schedule applies, and 

  (b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an 
occasion) applies as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that 
Schedule. 

 
 

51



52

This page is intentionally left blank



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



75



76

This page is intentionally left blank



Harrow Council, Licensing Section, P O Box 18, Station Road, Harrow. 
 

Making a Representation against an Application (New or 
variation) for a premises licence or club premises certificate 

under the Licensing Act 2003  
 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST  
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form  
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if 
necessary.  
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
 
I, Police Sergeant Carl Davis, make this representation under  
 
the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as 
applicable)  
 
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
 
Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference 
or description  
 
New Moon , Kenton Park Parade , Kenton  , Harrow  
 
 
Post town Harrow  Post code HA3 8DN  

 
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
 
Part 2 - Applicant details  
I am          Please tick byes  
 1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)    □ 

  
 a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises     □ 
  
 b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
  
 c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
d) a body representing persons involved in business     □ 

in the vicinity of the premises 

77



 
 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)     X  
 
3) a member of the club to which this application relates     □ 

(please complete (A) below)  
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)  
Mr  □ Mrs □  Miss □  Ms □  Other title  □ 

(for example, Rev)  
Surname   First names 
 

Please tick byes  
I am 18 years old or over        □ 
 
Current address  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Post Town   Post Code 
 
Daytime contact telephone number   
Email address  
(optional)  
 
(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT  
 
Name and address  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any)  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 

78



2  
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT  
Name and address  
 
Metropolitan Police 
South Harrow Police Station  
74 Northolt Road  
South Harrow  
HA2 ODN  
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any) 0208 733 3415  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 
This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)  

Please tick one or more boxes  
 1) the prevention of crime and disorder     X 
 2) public safety        x 
 3) the prevention of public nuisance      x 
 4) the protection of children form harm     x 
 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note1)  
 
 
This application appears to be a generic one with most content applicable to all J.D. Wetherspoon 
public houses. This is exampled not only from ‘options’ given to the reader to select regarding the 
application content but also by its identical content to other applications for premises owned or 
managed by the same company. 
 
The Police representations are primarily concerned with: 
 
Hours required for “Hours premises are open to the public” and “Late night refreshment” 
and “Supply of Alcohol” as well as the removal on restrictions on children and credit sales 
(Relevant sections are Part B sections  M , O , L , & P  )  
 
There is a clear link between crime & disorder and the consumption of alcohol. This is why the 
Act requires applicants to state what steps they are taking to meet the four objectives.  
 
The minimum requirements that police would expect are the provision of door supervisors, no 
drinks promotions and correctly installed and functioning CCTV, both within and immediately 
outside the premises. We would also expect that the applicant would adhere to a condition that 
they continue to adopt those steps they indicate taken from the government’s ‘Responsible 
Drinking’ campaign. 
 
I am not satisfied that this application has suggested any additional measures to promote the four 
objectives, especially the prevention of crime and disorder. They have merely extended the hours 
in which alcohol can be purchased and consumed, ignoring the current condition on their licence 
restricting the Children’s Certificate provisions (designated non- smoking area and prohibited 
access to bar). They make no indication that specific sections of this premises need any greater 
measures for the protection of children however currently (and following the opinion of the 
magistrates for this licensing district) they operate the premises with the measures in place. It 

79



seems apparent that they believe that following the second appointed day measures to protect 
children can be removed.   
 
Whilst on page 5 ( Part A3 -Operating Schedule) the applicant  gives an option on the appropriate 
ticked boxes the relationship of the activities to this particular premises or indeed this borough 
does not apply and the boxes are invalid.  
 
The application also shows no intention of having live music and dancing or any other 
entertainment. The application is solely requesting longer vertical drinking time with an ability to 
consume refreshment should it be requested.  
 
In this borough the small number of premises that currently operate ‘late’ or regular extended 
hours have entertainment incorporated within these hours and as a condition of these hours. 
These hours have been negotiated by use and proof of experience and by incorporating security 
measures into the conditions (e.g. door supervisors at a ratio of 1:50 patrons). This has vastly 
reduced the potential for disorder and has kept this borough a safer one.  
 
I do not object to the opening hour of 0700 hrs Monday provided that suitable signage is agreed 
as part of the conditions to indicate that intoxicating liquor is not for sale 0700hrs to 0900hrs . I do 
not believe that it is appropriate for this premises to open until at least 0800hrs on a Saturday and 
0900hrs on a Sunday in order that nuisance or disturbance is caused to local residents.  
 
I believe that the terminal hours sought on Monday to Sunday are unreasonable and that under 
the proposed operating plan the premises should be permitted no additional hours beyond those 
provided to it under its current licence save that on a Friday and Saturday night it could be 
extended until 0000hrs with corresponding 23:30 last supply of alcohol on these days would be 
more appropriate for this particular premises .  
 
 
Hours required for “non standard timings” 
(Relevant sections are Part B2, sections M and O  “non standard timings”) 
 
These premises sole Special Order of Exemption applied for in 2002 and granted was Xmas eve. 
In 2003 the only extensions asked for and granted were for 24th,26th and 31st December. In 2004 
the only extensions asked for and granted were for 24th,26th,27th, 28th December and in 2005 only 
3rd Jan ( from Xmas holiday period) and St Georges day were asked for and granted. This 
information is indicative to the panel of the lack of extended hours the premises has had over the 
last 4 years should they wish to measure extension of hours against problems/complaints. 
 
No applications were received for the Football World Cup in 2002 or for the Rugby World Cup the 
following year. Unless there have been recent changes to the premises there are no large 
screens or Televisions to display broadcasts or pre-recorded media. I object to the request for 
extensions for this premises to its hours relating to the “ from 0600am until the beginning 
of the standard hours or until 0300am as follows ;- on no more than 12 occasions etc etc “  
 
The 2003 Act provides a replacement for what are currently known as ‘extensions’, granted by 
the Police for special occasions, this being a Temporary Event Notice (TEN’s).  Applications may 
be made to the Licensing Authority for different trading hours under this section of the Act, but 
only up to twelve occasions a year and not these extra twelve being requested here. 
Notwithstanding that there has been some ‘guidance’ by ACPO in relation to unofficial 
agreements between the industry representatives and local police this will NOT be agreed to in 
this borough.  
 
St Patrick’s day and St George’s day have been regularly celebrated in the locality by other 
premises and there would be no Police objections to the additional hour requested. 
 
Police further object to the additional hours requested for the following days: 

80



 
•  Burns Night 
•  St David’s Day 
•  Halloween 
•  Australia Day  
•  St Andrews Day 
•  Extended hours until 0200am on Xmas Eve and Boxing Day 

 
Historically no previous applications have been made for extensions to the permitted hours for 
these dates. They are not significant dates of note for this area or for these particular premises. It 
is felt that these applications continue to be speculative and are universally rolled out for all 
premises in the JD Wetherspoon estate.  
 
The additional 30 minutes on Thursday preceding Good Friday and Sunday preceding Bank 
Holiday Monday is not an unreasonable request and I do not oppose this request. A similar grant 
for Xmas Eve and Boxing day would be more appropriate for this premises and to ensure police 
resources could meet and demand regarding potential crime and disorder.  
 
Whilst the requirement for events being special has been removed under the new legislation 
some basis of actual need for these dates should be forthcoming, and details provided of the 
measures the applicant will take to ensure the four licensing objectives are met. This would allow 
for Police resources to be suitably deployed to cover these hours rather than speculative planning 
for an event that may not take place. This application relies totally on ‘existing company practice 
at the premises – which has never had extended hours beyond the few S.O.E.’s granted.  
 
From experience there is always a rise in alcohol related crime and disorder which directly 
correlates with extended hours for the consumption of alcohol. Under the current legislation, 
various conditions have been placed on the licences of late night premises. They act as 
safeguards and ensure that these premises operate with the minimum of disruption to the public. 
Should a change in the style of the premises be considered then conditions should be offered 
which would ensure that the licensing objectives are fully met and the use of door supervisors is 
crucial to ensure this. 
 
The minimum requirements that police would expect should varied hours be granted are no 
drinks promotions and correctly installed and functioning CCTV both within and immediately 
outside the premises. All security measures such as this must comply to Crime Reduction Unit 
guidance. I request that the applicant contact the police Crime Reduction officers and that such 
an officer be allowed full access to all areas of the premises in order to review all security 
measures and that the applicant agree to any reasonable recommendations forthcoming in his 
report. This is to prevent crime and disorder. 
 
Police would ask that the applicant accept a condition that the premises participate in a pub 
watch scheme should one exist for their area. 
 
Should extended hours be granted a limit should also be set as to the maximum number of 
persons allowed in the premises at any one time to prevent overcrowding and potential tensions 
which would follow.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81



 
Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 2)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



 
Please tick  

yes  
 
Have you made a representation relating to this premises before    □  NO  
 
If yes please state the date of that representation, Day Month Year  

        
 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they 
were and when you made them  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83



 
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE 
STANDARD SCALE [AMOUNT], UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO 
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION  
 
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3)  
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (please read guidance note 4)  
If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.  
 
Signature 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………  
Date…………14th July 2005 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Capacity …………………Police Licensing Officer 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 5)  
 
 
 
 
 
Post town  
 

Post code  

Telephone number (if any)  
 
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an email address your e mail address (optional)  
 

 
Notes for Guidance  

 1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one of the licensing objectives.  
 2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in the 

grounds for representation if available.  
 3. The application form must be signed.  
 4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have 

actual authority to do so.  
 5. This is the address, which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.  

 
Relevant Representations means; 
 

a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence or club premises certificate on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives, 

b) that the representation were made by an interested party or responsible authority within the period 
prescribed, 28 days from the application was advertised. 

c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not also a responsible authority) that 
they are not, in the opinion of the relevant Licensing Authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

 
Further restrictions apply relating to Police Representations on DPS’s and representations on provisional 
statements.  Please check with the Licensing Section. 

 
 

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



 

 
 
Meeting:   Licensing Panel 
Date: 16 August 2005 
Subject: Application for variation of hours at Junction 

PH, Gayton Road, Harrow during Transitional 
period 

Responsible Officer: Chief Environmental Health Officer 
Contact Officer: P Sivashankar, Service Manager, ext 5605 
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Philip O’Dell 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
Members are asked to determine the application in accordance with the guidance 
in Section 2.5. 
 
Reason for report 
 
The application for a conversion and simultaneous variation by the Junction PH, 
Gayton Road, Harrow has received representations. As per the Council’s 
Licensing Policy and Delegation of Licensing Functions, all applications with 
unresolved representations are to be determined by the Licensing Panel. 
 
Benefits 
 
The hearing provides the applicant, persons making the representations and the 
Licensing Authority an opportunity to engage in constructive dialogue to 
determine the application in an open public forum.  
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
None 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 91 to 136

91



 

 
Risks 
 
If any party is aggrieved with the decision or is believes that a fair hearing is not 
provided, they can apply to the magistrates Court for a re-hearing. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
As above 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
2.1.1 Application has been made by Messer’s Blake Lapthorne Linnell on behalf 

of Mitchells and Butlers Leisure Retail Ltd, for a Premises Licence for 
Junction PH, Gayton Road, Harrow. A copy of the application and the 
existing licences are attached to this report. 

 
2.1.2 The application seeks changes to the existing Justices Licence hours, 

which, if granted, will take effect from 24th November 2005:  
 

 
Note: The Secretary of State through the statutory guidance has made this 
statement; 
 
It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and 
club premises certificates to anticipate special occasions which occur 
regularly each year – such as bank holidays – and to incorporate 
appropriate opening hours for these occasions in their operating 
schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices – in respect of which a 
personal licence holder may give fifty each year – should be sufficient to 
cover events like Golden Wedding Anniversaries or 21st Birthday parties 
which take place at premises which do not have a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. However, with the passage of time exceptional events 
of local, national or international significance will arise which could not or 
have not been anticipated. Such events can give rise to the need to vary 
the conditions of large numbers of premises licences and club premises 
certificates. In such circumstances, it will be open to the Secretary of State 
to make a licensing hours order to provide for premises with a premises 
licence or club premises certificate to open for specified, generally 
extended, hours on these special occasions. Examples might include a 
one-off local festival, a Royal Jubilee, a World Cup or an Olympic Games.  
 
Such events should be genuinely exceptional and the Secretary of State 
will not consider making such an order lightly. Licensing authorities (or any 
other persons) approaching the Secretary of State about the making of 
such an order are advised that they should give at least six months notice 
before the celebration in question. Before making such an order, the 

92



 

Secretary of State is required to consult such persons as she considers 
appropriate, and this would generally enable a wide-range of bodies to 
make representations to her for consideration. In addition, such an order 
will require the approval of both Houses of Parliament. Six months would 
be the minimum period in which such a process could be satisfactorily 
completed.  

 
 

 
The existing opening hours are listed on the attached licences. 

 
 
2.1.3 The Premises: 
 

The premises are situated in the corner of Gayton Road and Lyon Road. 
The area is predominantly commercial, but Sonia Court, a retirement flat is 
located at very close proximity to this establishment. The premises are of 
solid construction and whilst not purpose built for entertainments. This 
Division has received complaints regarding noise from the front garden 
and when people leaving in the past year.  The premises benefit from a 
garden and a location map is attached to this report. 

 
 
2.1.4 Policy Implications 

 
According to the Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under s182 of the Licensing Act 2003, recommends that variation of this 
nature should be based on 5 main policy aims.  These are that; 
 

1. the main purpose of the licensing regime is to promote the licensing 
objectives;  

2. applicants for premises licences or for major variations of such licences 
are expected to conduct a thorough risk assessment with regard to the 
licensing objectives when preparing their applications. This risk 
assessment will inform any necessary steps to be set out in an operating 
schedule to promote the four licensing objectives;  

3. operating schedules, which form part of an application, should be 
considered by professional experts in the areas concerned, such as the 
police and environmental health officers, when applications for premises 
licences and club premises certificates are copied to them by applicants;  

4. local residents and businesses are free to raise relevant representations, 
which relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives, about the 
proposals contained in an application; and  

5. the role of a licensing authority is primarily to regulate the carrying on of 
the licensable activity when there are differing specific interests in those 
activities to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted in the wider 
interests of the community.  
 
When considering applications, it is expected that licensing authorities will 
seek to uphold these policy aims. 

93



 

 
The Council’s Licensing Policy in section 2.2 stipulates that a thorough risk 
assessment with regards to the Licensing Objectives must be carried out 
to reflect the individual nature of the venue. 

 
2.2 Representations 
 
2.2.1 The application has received representations from 2 Responsible 

Authorities (Environmental Protection and Met. Police) sighting potential 
increase in public nuisance and the inadequate risk assessments to cover 
the additional opening hours applied for. Copies of these representations 
are attached to this Report. 
 

2.3 Consultation 
 

The application was advertised in accordance with the Regulations under 
the Licensing Act 2003.  This Authority has received 2 representations in 
total. 
 

2.4 Financial Implications 
 

N/A 
 

2.5 Legal Implications 
 

2.5.1 Having considered the representations from all parties, the Panel has to 
determine the application for the variation of the converted premises 
licence.  The legislation does not list the grounds on which the Panel can 
refuse and/or grant an application for a licence.  The legislation does allow 
for the imposition of conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers no 
guidance as to the type of condition that may be imposed.  It is clear that 
any additional conditions would have to be practical, enforceable and meet 
the rules of natural justice and the promotion of the four Licensing 
Objectives. 
 

2.5.2 Options available to the Panel: 
 
a. To grant the application as it stands.  Any licence granted would be 

subject to conditions relating to the Operating Schedule attached to the 
Application. 

 
b.  To grant the Licence in light of any evidence presented at the hearing, 

from both the interested party and the applicant, subject to: 
 

i) The conditions mentioned in the operating schedule being modified to 
such extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and/or to limit the period of validity of the grant, and 
 
ii) Any condition which, must under section 19, 20 or 21 (Mandatory 
Conditions) of the Licensing Act 2003 be included in the licence, and 

94



 

 
iii) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates, 
 

c. To reject the application. 
 
2.5.3 It should be noted with all options that; 
 
 i). Clear reasons would have to be given to the applicant and to the 

persons/Responsible Authorities who made representations if the 
application were granted, refused or, if additional conditions were 
imposed; and 

 
ii).  The applicant and/or the interested party/Responsible Authorities 

would have the right of appeal to a Magistrates Court. 
 
2.5.3. In addition to determining the application in accordance with the 

legislation, Members must also have regard to the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
2.6 Equalities Impact 
 

N/a 
 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Application 
Representations  
Mandatory Conditions that would be attached to the licence if granted. 
Conditions drawn from the Operating Schedule provided by the Applicant-Annex 
2 
 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating 
Schedule 
 
General 
The premises will be closed to public after the expiration of 30 minutes from the 
last permitted hour for the sale of alcohol. 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
The pub manager is required to participate in and support the local Pubwatch 
scheme, where active. 
 
The premises is provided with CCTV and operated in line with the Harrow 
Police’s guidelines inside and outside during the premises open to public. 
 
The use of toughened glass will continue to be used during additional hours. 
 

95



 

Public Safety 
None offered 
 
 
The prevention of public nuisance 
Patrons will be asked to leave quietly 
 
The protection of children from harm 
 

96



 

 
 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

 
19     Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

  
      (1) Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence 

must include the following conditions. 
  

      (2) The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the 
premises licence-  
  

  (a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect 
of the premises licence, or 

  (b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

      (3) The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises 
licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
  

20     Mandatory condition: exhibition of films 
  

      (1) Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence 
must include a condition requiring the admission of children to the exhibition 
of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section. 
  

      (2) Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless 
subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation made by that body. 
  

      (3) Where-  
  

  (a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 
  (b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence 

that this subsection applies to the film in question, 
  admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any 

recommendation made by that licensing authority. 
  

      (4) In this section-  
  

  "children" means persons aged under 18; and 
  "film classification body" means the person or persons designated as 

the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) 
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 

21     Mandatory condition: door supervision 
  

97



 

      (1) Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one 
or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the 
licence must include a condition that each such individual must be licensed by 
the Security Industry Authority. 
  

      (2) But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed-  
  

  (a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 
Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises 
licences authorising plays or films), or 

  (b) in respect of premises in relation to-  
  (i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that 

Schedule (premises being used exclusively by club with club 
premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising 
plays or films or under a gaming licence), or 

  (ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule 
(occasions prescribed by regulations under that Act). 

      (3) For the purposes of this section-  
  

  (a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of 
that Schedule applies, and 

  (b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an 
occasion) applies as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that 
Schedule. 

 
 

98



99



100





102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128

This page is intentionally left blank



Harrow Council, Licensing Section, P O Box 18, Station Road, Harrow. 
 

Making a Representation against an Application (New or 
variation) for a premises licence or club premises certificate 

under the Licensing Act 2003  
 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST  
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form  
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if 
necessary.  
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
 
I, Police Sergeant Carl Davis, make this representation under  
 
the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as 
applicable)  
 
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
 
Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference 
or description  
 
 The Junction, Gayton Hall, 9 Gayton Road   
 
 
Post town Harrow Post code HA1 2DH 

 
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
 
Part 2 - Applicant details  
I am          Please tick byes  
 1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)    □ 

  
 a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises     □ 
  
 b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
  
 c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
d) a body representing persons involved in business     □ 

in the vicinity of the premises 

129



 
 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)     X  
 
3) a member of the club to which this application relates     □ 

(please complete (A) below)  
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)  
Mr  □ Mrs □  Miss □  Ms □  Other title  □ 

(for example, Rev)  
Surname   First names 
 

Please tick byes  
I am 18 years old or over        □ 
 
Current address  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Post Town   Post Code 
 
Daytime contact telephone number   
Email address  
(optional)  
 
(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT  
 
Name and address  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any)  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 

130



2  
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT  
Name and address  
 
Metropolitan Police 
South Harrow Police Station  
74 Northolt Road  
South Harrow  
HA2 ODN  
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any) 0208 733 3415  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 
This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)  

Please tick one or more boxes  
 1) the prevention of crime and disorder     X 
 2) public safety         
 3) the prevention of public nuisance      x 
 4) the protection of children form harm     x 
 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note1)  
 
The Police representations are concerned with: 
 
Hours required for “Hours premises are open to the public” and “Late night refreshment” 
and “Supply of Alcohol” and “Provision of facilities for dancing” and Performance of 
Dance” and “Films” and “ Indoor Sporting Events” and “ Live Music”  
(Relevant sections are Part B sections  B, C, E, G, M & O, J and L  )  
 
This premises is situated in a quiet road set slightly apart from the main town area with residential 
premises nearby. 
 
The premises has come to police attention regarding incidents of crime and disorder and for this 
reason the door supervisors condition remains on the public entertainment licence and 
negotiation resulted in comprehensive CCTV for the premises and its cur tillage.  The most recent 
crime allegations were recorder on 1st July following a fight at the premises.  
 
The terminal hours sought for this particular premises are not suitable on Sunday through to 
Wednesday with regard disturbance and nuisance to the public and with regard available police 
resources.  I request that the closing hours be fixed for these days as midnight and the other 
hours for other activities be set at 2330hrs.  
 
The minimum requirements conditions that police would expect are the provision of door 
supervisors, no drinks promotions and correctly installed and functioning CCTV, both within and 
immediately outside the premises 
  
 
  
 
 

131



 
Hours required for “non standard timings” 
(Relevant sections are Part B2, sections M and O  “non standard timings”) 
 
Any Special Order of Exemption granted for this premises in the past four years have generally 
been for only a further one (1) hour. These premises applied for and were granted Xmas eve and 
extensions over the last recorded years. New Years Eve has been de-regulated or granted.  No 
further Xmas or other type of Bank holiday ( May, Easter, August Bank Holidays etc) have ever 
been sought. 
 
An application was received for the Football World Cup in 2002 and applications for the Rugby 
World Cup the following year. There are large screens to display broadcasts or pre-recorded 
media. 
 
This information is indicative to the panel of the lack of extended hours the premises has had 
over the last 4 years should they wish to measure extension of hours against 
problems/complaints. 
 
The 2003 Act provides a replacement for what are currently known as ‘extensions’, granted by 
the Police for special occasions, this being a Temporary Event Notice (TEN’s).  Applications may 
be made to the Licensing Authority for different trading hours under this section of the Act, but 
only up to twelve occasions a year and not these extra being requested here. Notwithstanding 
that there has been some ‘guidance’ by ACPO in relation to unofficial agreements between 
the industry representatives and local police this will NOT be agreed to in this borough.  
 
St Patrick’s day and St George’s day have been regularly celebrated in the locality by other 
premises and there would be no Police objections to the additional hour requested. 
 
However I further object to the additional hours requested for the following days: 

 
•  Burns Night 
•  St David’s Day 
•  Halloween 
•  Valentines Night 
•  Additional hours evenings preceding working days 
 

 
Historically no previous applications have been made for extensions to the permitted hours for 
these dates. They are not significant dates of note for this area or for these particular premises 
and whilst they may be speculative I consider that the others sought and not opposed (Good 
Friday etc) combined with the applicants ability to request temporary event notices will place 
sufficient number of extended hours on this premises to test the patience of the local residents 
and stretch police resources beyond limit..  
 
Whilst the requirement for the event being special has been removed under the new legislation 
some basis of actual need for these dates should be forthcoming, and details provided of the 
measures the applicant will take to ensure the four licensing objectives are met. This would allow 
for Police resources to be suitably deployed to cover these hours rather than speculative planning 
for an event that may not take place. 
 
 
All security measures such as this must comply to Crime Reduction Unit guidance. I request that 
the applicant contact the police Crime Reduction officers and that such an officer be allowed full 
access to all areas of the premises in order to review all security measures and that the applicant 
agree to any reasonable recommendations forthcoming in his report. This is to prevent crime and 
disorder. 
 

132



Police would ask that the applicant accept a condition that the Designated Premises Supervisor 
or at least a Licensee in his/her absence agree to the condition that they continue to participate in 
the pub watch scheme in the area. . 
 
I request it be made a condition that any S.34 AWP machine be either emptied at night or fitted 
with appropriate recommended security device ( e.g. a ‘boot’  or metal roller shutter) . 
 
Regarding prevention of public nuisance I suggest that a condition be imposed that notices will be 
displayed asking customers to respect neighbours when leaving the premises. 
 
I also request the panel examine the disturbance to residents by use of the exterior areas of the 
premises and consider, should extended hours be given to the premises that an earlier condition 
be placed on the use of the exterior areas.  
 
In order to protect children I ask that a non-smoking area for children is not only provided but is 
enforced and that the panel consider the use of smoke extractors as a condition.  
 
Similarly, experience shows that a condition of use of a noise limiter on entertainment equipment 
is a sensible tool to prevent public nuisance through noise. 
 
Regarding under age drinking I request a ‘challenge under 21’ policy be adopted. 
 
Toughened glass should be a condition of a licence given to a premises granted extended hours. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133



 
Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 2)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



 
Please tick  

yes  
 
Have you made a representation relating to this premises before    □  NO  
 
If yes please state the date of that representation, Day Month Year  

        
 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they 
were and when you made them  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135



 
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE 
STANDARD SCALE [AMOUNT], UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO 
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION  
 
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3)  
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (please read guidance note 4)  
If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.  
 
Signature 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………  
Date…………15th  July 2005 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Capacity …………………Police Licensing Officer 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 5)  
 
 
 
 
 
Post town  
 

Post code  

Telephone number (if any)  
 
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an email address your e mail address (optional)  
 

 
Notes for Guidance  

 1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one of the licensing objectives.  
 2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in the 

grounds for representation if available.  
 3. The application form must be signed.  
 4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have 

actual authority to do so.  
 5. This is the address, which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.  

 
Relevant Representations means; 
 

a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence or club premises certificate on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives, 

b) that the representation were made by an interested party or responsible authority within the period 
prescribed, 28 days from the application was advertised. 

c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not also a responsible authority) that 
they are not, in the opinion of the relevant Licensing Authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

 
Further restrictions apply relating to Police Representations on DPS’s and representations on provisional 
statements.  Please check with the Licensing Section. 

 
 

136



 

 
 
Meeting:   Licensing Panel 
Date: 16 August 2005 
Subject: Application for variation of hours at 

Wealdstone Inn, High Road, Harrow Weald 
during Transitional period 

Responsible Officer: Chief Environmental Health Officer 
Contact Officer: P Sivashankar, Service Manager, ext 5605 
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Philip O’Dell 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
Members are asked to determine the application in accordance with the guidance 
in Section 2.5. 
 
Reason for report 
 
The application for a conversion and simultaneous variation is made by owners 
Spirit Group Ltd, for the Wealdstone Inn, High Road, Harrow Weald. This 
application has received a representation. As per the Council’s Licensing Policy 
and Delegation of Licensing Functions, all applications with unresolved 
representations are to be determined by the Licensing Panel. 
 
Benefits 
 
The hearing provides the applicant, persons making the representations and the 
Licensing Authority an opportunity to engage in constructive dialogue to 
determine the application in an open public forum.  
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
None 

Agenda Item 13
Pages 137 to 180

137



 

 
Risks 
 
If any party is aggrieved with the decision or is believes that a fair hearing is not 
provided, they can apply to the magistrates Court for a re-hearing. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
As above 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
2.1.1 The application for a conversion and simultaneous variation is made by 

TLT Solicitors on behalf of Spirit Group Ltd, for a Premises Licence for 
Wealdstone Inn, High Road, harrow Weald. A copy of the application and 
the existing licences are attached to this report. 

 
2.1.2 The application seeks the following changes to the existing Justices 

Licence hours, which, if granted, will take effect from 24th November 2005:  
 

Sale of alcohol, provision of Late night refreshment and the hours that the 
premises are open to the public to be extended from 11pm to the hours 
listed in the table below:-  

 
SALE BY RETAIL OF 
ALCOHOL ON & OFF 

PROVISION OF LATE 
NIGHT REFRESHMENT – 
INDOORS & OUTDOORS 

HOURS PREMISES ARE 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH 
MON 1000 0000 MON   MON 1000 0030 
TUE 1000 0000 TUE   TUE 1000 0030 
WED 1000 0000 WED   WED 1000 0030 
THU 1000 0000 THU   THU 1000 0030 
FRI 1000 0100 FRI   FRI 1000 0130 
SAT 1000 0100 SAT   SAT 1000 0130 
SUN 1200 0000 SUN   SUN 1200 0030 

 
PERFORMANE 
OFDANCE 

SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO 
LIVE MUSIC, DANCING OR 
RECORDED MUSIC - karaoke 

RECORDED MUSIC & LIVE 
MUSIC - INDOORS 

DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH DAY START FINISH 
MON 1000 0000 MON 1000 0000 MON 1000 0000 
TUE 1000 0000 TUE 1000 0000 TUE 1000 0000 
WED 1000 0000 WED 1000 0000 WED 1000 0000 
THU 1000 0000 THU 1000 0000 THU 1000 0000 
FRI 1000 0100 FRI 1000 0100 FRI 1000 0100 
SAT 1000 0100 SAT 1000 0100 SAT 1000 0100 
SUN 1200 0000 SUN 1200 0000 SUN 1200 0000 

 
 

138



 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES TO EXTEND: 

 
Bank Holidays: A further additional hour into the morning following every 
Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday. 
 
Easter: A further additional hour into the morning following every Thursday 
Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday 
 
A further additional hour every Christmas Eve 
 
A further additional hour every Boxing Day 
 
 
Note: The Secretary of State through the statutory guidance has made this 
statement; 
 
It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and 
club premises certificates to anticipate special occasions, which occur 
regularly each year –such as bank holidays –, and to incorporate 
appropriate opening hours for these occasions in their operating 
schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices – in respect of which a 
personal licence holder may give fifty each year – should be sufficient to 
cover events like Golden Wedding Anniversaries or 21st Birthday parties 
which take place at premises which do not have a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. However, with the passage of time exceptional events 
of local, national or international significance will arise which could not or 
have not been anticipated. Such events can give rise to the need to vary 
the conditions of large numbers of premises licences and club premises 
certificates. In such circumstances, it will be open to the Secretary of State 
to make a licensing hours order to provide for premises with a premises 
licence or club premises certificate to open for specified, generally 
extended, hours on these special occasions. Examples might include a 
one-off local festival, a Royal Jubilee, a World Cup or an Olympic Games.  
 
Such events should be genuinely exceptional and the Secretary of State 
will not consider making such an order lightly. Licensing authorities (or any 
other persons) approaching the Secretary of State about the making of 
such an order are advised that they should give at least six months notice 
before the celebration in question. Before making such an order, the 
Secretary of State is required to consult such persons as she considers 
appropriate, and this would generally enable a wide-range of bodies to 
make representations to her for consideration. In addition, such an order 
will require the approval of both Houses of Parliament. Six months would 
be the minimum period in which such a process could be satisfactorily 
completed.  

 
 

The current permitted hours are 1100 to 2300 Sunday to Thursday and 
1100 to 00000 on Fridays and Saturdays with 30 minutes drinking up time. 

139



 

The premises also holds a public entertainment licence granted by this 
Authority. 
 

 
2.1.3 The Premises: 
 

The premises are situated in the main commercial part where a number of 
restaurants and shops are located. The premises are of solid construction 
and fitted with a noise limiter. This Division has not received any 
complaints regarding noise in the past year.  A location map is attached to 
this report. 

 
 
2.1.4 Policy Implications 

 
According to the Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003, recommends that variation of this 
nature should be based on 5 main policy aims.  These are that; 
 

1. the main purpose of the licensing regime is to promote the licensing 
objectives;  

2. applicants for premises licences or for major variations of such licences 
are expected to conduct a thorough risk assessment with regard to the 
licensing objectives when preparing their applications. This risk 
assessment will inform any necessary steps to be set out in an operating 
schedule to promote the four licensing objectives;  

3. operating schedules, which form part of an application, should be 
considered by professional experts in the areas concerned, such as the 
police and environmental health officers, when applications for premises 
licences and club premises certificates are copied to them by applicants;  

4. local residents and businesses are free to raise relevant representations, 
which relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives, about the 
proposals contained in an application; and  

5. the role of a licensing authority is primarily to regulate the carrying on of 
the licensable activity when there are differing specific interests in those 
activities to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted in the wider 
interests of the community.  
 
When considering applications, it is expected that licensing authorities will 
seek to uphold these policy aims. 
 
The Council’s Licensing Policy in section 2.2 stipulates that a thorough risk 
assessment with regards to the Licensing Objectives must be carried out 
to reflect the individual nature of the venue. 
 

  
2.2 Representations 
 
2.2.1 The application has received representations from 1 Responsible Authority 

(Met. Police) sighting the 4 Licensing Objectives and the inadequate risk 

140



 

assessments to cover the additional opening hours applied for. Copies of 
these representations are attached to this Report. 
 

2.3 Consultation 
 

The application was advertised in accordance with the Regulations under 
the Licensing Act 2003.  This Authority has received 1 representation in 
total. 
 

2.4 Financial Implications 
 

N/A 
 

2.5 Legal Implications 
 

2.5.1 Having considered the representations from all parties, the Panel has to 
determine the application for the variation of the converted premises 
licence.  The legislation does not list the grounds on which the Panel can 
refuse and/or grant an application for a licence.  The legislation does allow 
for the imposition of conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers no 
guidance as to the type of condition that may be imposed.  It is clear that 
any additional conditions would have to be practical, enforceable and meet 
the rules of natural justice and the promotion of the four Licensing 
Objectives. 
 

2.5.2 Options available to the Panel: 
 
a. To grant the application as it stands.  Any licence granted would be 

subject to conditions relating to the Operating Schedule attached to the 
Application. 

 
b.  To grant the Licence in light of any evidence presented at the hearing, 

from both the interested party and the applicant, subject to: 
 

i) The conditions mentioned in the operating schedule being modified to 
such extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and/or to limit the period of validity of the grant, and 
 
ii) Any condition which, must under section 19, 20 or 21 (Mandatory 
Conditions) of the Licensing Act 2003 be included in the licence, and 
 
iii) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates, 
 

c. To reject the application. 
 
2.5.3 It should be noted with all options that; 
 
 i). Clear reasons would have to be given to the applicant and to the 

persons/Responsible Authorities who made representations if the 

141



 

application were granted, refused or, if additional conditions were 
imposed; and 

 
ii).  The applicant and/or the interested party/Responsible Authorities 

would have the right of appeal to a Magistrates Court. 
 
2.5.3. In addition to determining the application in accordance with the 

legislation, Members must also have regard to the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
2.6 Equalities Impact 
 

N/a 
 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Application 
Representations  
Mandatory Conditions that would be attached to the licence if granted. 
Conditions drawn from the Operating Schedule provided by the Applicant-Annex 
2 
 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating 
Schedule 
 
General 
A 30 minute drinking up time will be allowed for gradual dispersal from the 
premises. 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
The premises is provided with CCTV and operated in line with the Harrow Police’s 
guidelines inside and outside during the premises open to public. 
 
Public Safety 
The patrons will be encouraged to leave the premises quietly. 
 
The prevention of public nuisance 
Appropriate signage is placed to request patrons to leave quietly 
 
The protection of children from harm 
None offered 

142



 

 
 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

 
19     Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

  
      (1) Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence 

must include the following conditions. 
  

      (2) The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the 
premises licence-  
  

  (a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect 
of the premises licence, or 

  (b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

      (3) The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises 
licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
  

20     Mandatory condition: exhibition of films 
  

      (1) Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence 
must include a condition requiring the admission of children to the exhibition 
of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section. 
  

      (2) Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless 
subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation made by that body. 
  

      (3) Where-  
  

  (a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 
  (b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence 

that this subsection applies to the film in question, 
  admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any 

recommendation made by that licensing authority. 
  

      (4) In this section-  
  

  "children" means persons aged under 18; and 
  "film classification body" means the person or persons designated as 

the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) 
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 

21     Mandatory condition: door supervision 
  

143



 

      (1) Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one 
or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the 
licence must include a condition that each such individual must be licensed by 
the Security Industry Authority. 
  

      (2) But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed-  
  

  (a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 
Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises 
licences authorising plays or films), or 

  (b) in respect of premises in relation to-  
  (i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that 

Schedule (premises being used exclusively by club with club 
premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising 
plays or films or under a gaming licence), or 

  (ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule 
(occasions prescribed by regulations under that Act). 

      (3) For the purposes of this section-  
  

  (a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of 
that Schedule applies, and 

  (b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an 
occasion) applies as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that 
Schedule. 

 
 

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172

This page is intentionally left blank



Harrow Council, Licensing Section, P O Box 18, Station Road, Harrow. 
 

Making a Representation against an Application (New or 
variation) for a premises licence or club premises certificate 

under the Licensing Act 2003  
 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST  
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form  
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if 
necessary.  
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
 
I, Police Sergeant Carl Davis, make this representation under  
 
the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as 
applicable)  
 
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
 
Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference 
or description  
 
Wealdstone Inn, High Road     
 
 
Post town Harrow  Post code HA3 6EB  

 
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  
 
 
 
Part 2 - Applicant details  
I am          Please tick byes  
 1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)    □ 

  
 a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises     □ 
  
 b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
  
 c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of    □ 

the premises  
d) a body representing persons involved in business     □ 

in the vicinity of the premises 

173



 
 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)     X  
 
3) a member of the club to which this application relates     □ 

(please complete (A) below)  
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)  
Mr  □ Mrs □  Miss □  Ms □  Other title  □ 

(for example, Rev)  
Surname   First names 
 

Please tick byes  
I am 18 years old or over        □ 
 
Current address  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Post Town   Post Code 
 
Daytime contact telephone number   
Email address  
(optional)  
 
(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT  
 
Name and address  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any)  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 

174



2  
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT  
Name and address  
 
Metropolitan Police 
South Harrow Police Station  
74 Northolt Road  
South Harrow  
HA2 ODN  
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any) 0208 733 3415  
 
E-mail (optional)  
 

 
This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)  

Please tick one or more boxes  
 1) the prevention of crime and disorder     X 
 2) public safety        x 
 3) the prevention of public nuisance      x 
 4) the protection of children form harm     x 
 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note1)  
 
Police are not opposing the hours sought in this application, however I am requesting additional 
measures beyond those mentioned in the application in order that these assist in meeting the 
licensing objectives. 
 
There is a clear link between crime & disorder and the consumption of alcohol. This is why the 
Act requires applicants to state what steps they are taking to meet the four objectives.  
 
The minimum requirements that police would expect are the provision of door supervisors on 
those evenings where additional hours are utilised, no drinks promotions and correctly installed 
and functioning CCTV, both within and immediately outside the premises. 
 
The applicant has suggested some additional measures to promote the four objectives. With 
regards the protection of children from harm we consider it an excellent condition that children are 
not permitted on the premises after 1900hrs save use of the patio, toilets and function room. I 
request that the applicant agree to a further condition that children are not permitted on any part 
of the premises beyond 2300hrs.   
 
 
The application makes a request for extended hours for live music and dance and supply of 
alcohol but also makes request to remove the requirements under the Special Hours Certificate 
that obliges alcohol sale be ancillary to provision of substantial refreshment.  The application is 
solely requesting longer vertical drinking time with no ability to consume refreshment should it be 
requested.  
 
On 5Th February 2005 police came across a fight outside this premises.  A karaoke night had 
been held at the location, it would appear that this attracted a number of the local youths.  As the 
manager was asking people to leave a fight broke out between these people outside of the pub, 
the fight was seen by police and quickly dealt with.  None of the parties involved wished to make 

175



any allegations.   
 
In this borough the small number of premises that currently operate ‘late’ or regular extended 
hours have entertainment incorporated within these hours and as a condition of these hours. 
These hours have been negotiated by use and proof of experience and by incorporating security 
measures into the conditions (e.g. door supervisors at a ratio of 1:50 patrons). This has vastly 
reduced the potential for disorder and has kept this borough a safer one.  
 
On a Friday and Saturday night I request that a last entry or re-entry condition be imposed and 
set at midnight to avoid crime and disorder.  
 
It is not known whether The CCTV system for this premises is of a suitable standard and police 
would request it be upgraded to Police Crime Reduction officer approval should this be 
applicable. Whenever incidents occur of disorder and criminality the lack of suitable CCTV 
evidence impairs the investigation. A condition must be made that should a varied licence be 
granted to the premises that an appropriate CCTV system be installed with all appropriate 
operating measures met.  
 
Regarding prevention of public nuisance notices should be displayed asking customers to respect 
neighbours when leaving the premises. I ask that this be made a condition.   
 
Similarly I suggest a condition of a terminal hour on the use of the exterior of the premises in 
order to avoid disturbance to neighbours. 
 
I request it be made a condition that any S.34 AWP machine be either emptied at night or fitted 
with appropriate recommended security device ( e.g. a ‘boot’ or “ roller shutter cabinet”) . 
 
I ask that the non-smoking area for children is not only provided but is enforced and that the 
panel consider the use of smoke extractors as a condition.  
 
Regarding under age drinking I request a ‘challenge under 21’ policy be adopted. 
 
Toughened glass should be a condition of a licence given to a premises granted extended hours. 
 
Attendance at the local pub watch by a Licensee or the D.P.S. must be a condition. I am aware 
that the current Licensees attend the existing pub watch scheme.  
 
All security measures such as this must comply to Crime Reduction Unit guidance. I request that 
the applicant contact the police Crime Reduction officers and that such an officer be allowed full 
access to all areas of the premises in order to review all security measures and that the applicant 
agree to any reasonable recommendations forthcoming in his report. This is to prevent crime and 
disorder. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

176



 
Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 2)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

177



 
Please tick  

yes  
 
Have you made a representation relating to this premises before    □  NO  
 
If yes please state the date of that representation, Day Month Year  

        
 
 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they 
were and when you made them  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

178



 
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE 
STANDARD SCALE [AMOUNT], UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO 
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION  
 
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3)  
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (please read guidance note 4)  
If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.  
 
Signature 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………  
Date…………14th July 2005 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Capacity …………………Police Licensing Officer 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 5)  
 
 
 
 
 
Post town  
 

Post code  

Telephone number (if any)  
 
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an email address your e mail address (optional)  
 

 
Notes for Guidance  

 1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one of the licensing objectives.  
 2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in the 

grounds for representation if available.  
 3. The application form must be signed.  
 4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have 

actual authority to do so.  
 5. This is the address, which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.  

 
Relevant Representations means; 
 

a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence or club premises certificate on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives, 

b) that the representation were made by an interested party or responsible authority within the period 
prescribed, 28 days from the application was advertised. 

c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not also a responsible authority) that 
they are not, in the opinion of the relevant Licensing Authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

 
Further restrictions apply relating to Police Representations on DPS’s and representations on provisional 
statements.  Please check with the Licensing Section. 

 
 

179



180

This page is intentionally left blank


